

In Memoriam.

Miss MARY ELIZABETH ULLOCK, of Quarry Howe, Bowness-on-Windermere, died on July 25th, 1920, aged 85. She had been a member of our Society since 1889, and in earlier days was often seen at our meetings. The last descendant of a family which had lived in Bowness for nearly two hundred years, she took a great interest in all that belonged to the neighbourhood, in the preservation of its links with the past and in its present welfare.

Mrs. GILLBANKS, of Clifton, Westmorland, daughter of our late member Mr. James Mawson, architect to the Lowther estate, and wife of Mr. Plaskett Gillbanks, died after a long illness on September 8th, 1920. She had been a member of our Society for forty-three years, and was a keen antiquary and collector. In these *Transactions*, N.S. iii., 406-7, is a short list of the British, Roman and later objects which she exhibited to the Society at Clifton, August 28th, 1902; and on our visit to Appleby, September 10th, 1908, she contributed a series of rubbings of Samian ware from Kirkby Thore.

The Rev. GEORGE JONES, vicar of Thrimby with Great Strickland died at the vicarage on December 12th, 1920. Mr. Jones, after leaving Queen's College, Birmingham, in 1883, held a curacy in Derbyshire and was presented to Great Strickland in 1888 by his brother-in-law, the late Rev. J. Knight of Morland. He was a member of our Society from 1911 and a subscriber to the Record Publication fund, and often attended our meetings.

At our last Spring Meeting the absence of Dr. Barnes was greatly regretted. It was understood that he was suffering from a cold, but most of us were quite unprepared for the news of his death which reached us only a few days later. With him we lose one of our oldest and most valued members, for the services he rendered to the Society are very inadequately represented by the number of papers he contributed and the mention of his name in these *Transactions*. His continual care of our interests

his unremitting attention to details of our work and his ungrudging support in all our aims made him, for many years, the real leader of the Society at its headquarters in Carlisle.

HENRY BARNES was born on July 20th, 1842, at Aikton House near Wigton, and educated at St. Bees Grammar School and Edinburgh University. In 1864 he graduated M.D. with honours, and in 1866 he settled in Carlisle, where he was, two years later, appointed physician to the Dispensary and to the Town Hospital. In 1873 he was elected physician to the Cumberland Infirmary, a position he held for thirty years, during which that institution flourished greatly; his share in creating its prosperity was recognised by attaching his name to a wing of its new buildings and by his election to the presidency. At the Home for Incurables he was successively consulting physician and president; at the Convalescent Home, Silloth, he was consulting physician and vice-president. At the Carlisle meeting of the British Medical Association in 1896 he took the chair, and at the Montreal meeting of the Association he received from McGill University the honorary degree of LL.D. He was also a Fellow of the Royal Society of Edinburgh. He was one of the founders of the local Hospital Sunday and Saturday Fund and served on the Committee from 1870 until his death. In 1907 he took part in establishing the Cumberland branch of the Red Cross Society, of which he was hon. secretary and treasurer throughout the War, earning the merited decoration of O.B.E. He also served on the Local Advisory Committee of the Central Carlisle Board (Liquor Traffic) and on the City of Carlisle Local Tribunal. He had been J.P. for the city from 1887 and for the county from two years later; in 1904 he was appointed Chairman of the Cumberland Ward Justices. From 1873 to 1900 he was vicar's warden of St. Cuthbert's, Carlisle; from 1903 to 1918 a governor of the Grammar School, and latterly a member of the Committee for the Carlisle Library and Museum.

Notwithstanding these varied responsibilities he found time for frequent travel, to America and to the Continent, and for considerable studies in local and professional history, on which he wrote in various publications. He became a member of this Society in 1875, member of Council in 1894, and a vice-president 1909. He contributed to these *Transactions* papers on "Leprosy and Local Leper Hospitals" (o.s. x); "Visitations of the Plague in Cumberland and Westmorland" (o.s. xi.); "Touching for the King's Evil" (o.s. xiii.); "The proposed Ethnographical

Survey" (o.s. xiv.); and to the new series, "Roman Medicine and Medical Practitioners," and "Bones from the Grayson-Lands Tumulus" (i); "The Bishop's Licence to practise medicine, etc.," (iii); "Stone Coffin and Chalice found at St. Nicholas, Carlisle" (vi); "The Kirkoswald Coffin Chalice and Paten, and others" (vii); "The Battle of Ardderyd" (viii); "Bankers' Scales" (xii); "Aikton Church" (xiii); and "The McMechan Chapbooks in the Jackson Library" (xvii).

Dr. Barnes died at his house in Portland Square, Carlisle, on April 12th, 1921, from heart failure following a bronchial attack. He was in his 79th year. He married in 1873 Emily Mary, daughter of Mr. Thomas Barnes of Bolton, Lancashire, and is survived by his wife, a son and a daughter.
